
I nearly died. The week this happened he was camping with the Boy Scouts 
and gone Friday, Saturday, and Sunday when the stuff was on TV. 

Mr. GERACI. I was in school when he got shot. 
Mrs. GERACI. But sou lvere in camp, but you didn’t see a lot of the funeral and 

all that stuff showing Oswald’s picture. 
Mr. LIEBELER. How did you first become aware that Oswald was the fellow 

you met? Did Vance talk to you about it? Do you remember? 
Mr. GERACI. The first time was when the FBI agent came to my house and 

asked did I see an ex-marine and showed a picture and all that. I didn’t even 
know it before that. It was just then that. I realized. 

Mr. LIEBEI.ER. Did the F’BI man tell you how he-- 
Mr. GERACI. Got my name? 
Mr. LIEBELER. What prompted him, why did he come to your house? Did 

he tell you? 
Mr. GERACI. Wrll. he said he rouldn’t tell me that. I asked him. and he said, 

Fell, he couldn’t tell me. Of course, I guess it might have been because we- 
mp mother palled. you know, about this Cuban business-they got my name on 
their list or something. I guess, and when they found out that he tried to join 
that group. that must have been where it came from. That is what I think. 

Mrs. GERACI. They probably had a list of people who were collecting money 
for the organization. 

Mr. LIEBELER. OK. I don’t have any more questions. I do want to thank 
rou very much for coming in and being as cooperative as you have, and, on 
behalf of the Commission, I want to thank you very much. 

Mr. GERACI. OK. 
Mrs. GERACI. You are welcome, so long as we don’t have any publicity. 
Mr. LIEBELER. That is something you never can guarantee. 

TESTIMONY OF VANCE BLALOCK 

The testimony of Vance Blalock, accompanied by his parents, was taken on 
April 7-8, 1964, at the Old Civil Courts Building, Royal and Conti Streets, 
Yew Orleans, La., by Mr. Wesley .J. Liebeler. assistant counsel of the President’s 
Commission. 

Vance Blalock. having been first duly sworn, was examined and testified as 
follows : 

Mr. LIEBELER. My name is Wesley .J. Liebeler. I am a member of the legal 
staff of the President’s Commission investigating the assassination of President 
Kennedy. Staff members have been authorized to take the testimony of wit- 
nesses by the Commission, pursuant to authority granted to the Commission by 
Executive Order So. 11130, dated November %, 1963. and joint resolution of 
Congress Xo. 137. I understand, Vance, that Mr. Lee Rankin, who is general 
counsel of the Commission, wrote you a letter last week-- 

Mr. BLALOCK. That is right. 
Mr. LIEBELER. And told you that I would be in touch with you concerning 

the taking of your testimony. I understand that Mr. Rankin enclosed with 
that letter a copy of the Executive order and of the resolution of Congress to 
which I hare just referred, as well as a copy of the rules of procedure adopted 
by the Commission governing the taking of the tcatimony of witnesses. Did 
you receive that letter and those documents? 

Mr. BLALOCK. Yes; I did. 
Mr. LIEBELER. We want to inquire very briefly of you concerning an event 

which occurred some time in the summer of 3963 here in Sew Orleans. We 
understand that you were present at a meeting, a chance meeting, between Lee 
Harvey Oswald and Carlos Bringuier. Before we get into the details of that, 
however, would you state your full name for the record. 

Mr. BLALOCK. Vance Dougiax Blalock. 
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Mr. LIEBELER. Let the record show that your mother and father are here in 
the room with us. How old are you, Vance? 

Mr. BLALOCK. I am 16. 

Mr. LIEEXLEB. Where were you born? 
Mr. BLALOCK. Lake Charles, La. 

Mr. LIEBELEK Where do you live now? 
Mr. BLALOCK. Metairie, La. 
Mr. LIEBELER. How long have you lived there? 
Mr. BLALOCK. Less than a year. 
Mr. LIEBFXER. Do you go to school? 
Mr. BLALOCK. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LIEBELEB. Where? 
Mr. BLALOCK. East Jefferson High School. 
Mr. LIEBELER. What grade are you in at East Jefferson High School? 
Mr. BLALOCK. Tenth. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Do you know Carlos Bringuier? 
Mr. BLALOCK. I have met him once. 

Mr. LIEBELEB. How did it happen that you met him? 
Mr. BLALOCK. I went downtown with my friend, Philip Geraci. We went to 

a store to return funds that Philip had collected for the organization this man 
had had, and while I was there I met Carlos.. That is how I met him. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Did you have anything to do with these funds that were col- 
lected by your friend Geraci? 

Mr. BLALOCK. No, sir; I didn’t. 
Mr. LIEBELER. That was entirely his operation? 
Mr. BLALOCK. Yes. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Do you remember where you went that day with Philip? 
Mr. BLALOCK. Yes, sir; we went to Decatur Street, I believe it is. I am not 

sure. The store is the Casa Roca. 
Mr. LIEBELER. What organization was it that Bringuier was running? Do 

you know? 
Mr. BLALOCK. I couldn’t say the Spanish name. The American name of it 

is the Cuban Student Revolutionary Organization. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Can you tell me approximately when that was? 
Mr. BLALOCK. Last part of the summer. I couldn’t- 
Mr. LIEBELFR. Late July or early August would it be, or some time in August 

of 19631 
Mr. BLALOCK. August would be the closest I could get. I don’t remember 

the exact date. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Tell me the conversation that you and Philip had with Brin- 

guier when you went into the store. 
Mr. BLALOCK. Oh, we entered the store and Philip introduced me to Carlos, 

and I told him-1 saw the funds Philip had collected for him, and I told him 
I was curious about what it was for, and then he explained for me how the 

organization worked and told me he received the funds from people in New 
Orleans and sent it to Florida, and that was his total business, and he explained 
that Communism was where the kids are supposed to tell everything on their 
parents, to obey the State and not their parents. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Present at this conversation were just you and Philip and 

Carlos? Is that right? 
Mr. BLALOCK. No; there was another man-must have worked at the store. 

He was present. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Did you know what his name was? 
Mr. B-LOCK. No, sir. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Now whiie you were there in the store, did you notice anybody 

else present? 
Mr. BLALOCK. Well, a man from a moving company or some trucking company 

came in. He had a radio that needed to be fixed, a broken radio, and Lee Harvey 
Oswald came in. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Tell us, to the best of your recollection, the things that happened 
as far as Oswald was concerned. 

Mr. BLAI.OCK. He walked up to us and leaned against the desk and listened 
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to the conversation. Then he started asking questions about the organization, 
and we were talking about guerrilla warfare, just in case the country got in war 
how young students could help, something in that nature, and then he started- 
then Oswald, Lee Harvey Oswald, asked Carlos Bringuier all ahout the organiza- 

tion and what part it playetl in the main movement in Florida. 
Mr. bEBELER. Did they say anything else? Was there more to the conversa- 

tion? 
Mr. BLN.~CK. Let’s see. 
Mr. LIEBELZR. Did this man who walked ul, introduce himself by name? 

Mr. RLALOCK. I believe so. but I don’t remember what name he gave. 
Mr. LIEBFILER. Are you now convinced that he was Lee Harvey Oswald? 

Mr. BL~I.~cK. Yes. sir. I know his face. I recognized his face. 
Mr. LIETIFXER. But you don’t remember that he mentioned the name Lee Harvey 

Oswald at that time? 
Mr. BLALOCK. No. 

Mr. LIEREI~ER. Did Oswald say anything about having been a Marine? 
Mr. I31,azoc~. Tes. sir: he did. and he explained that he took training in 

guerrilla warfare. and he told us hnw to blow up bridges, derail trains, make 
zip guns. make homemade gunpowder. 

JIr. LIERELER. He told you about this in detail? 
Mr. BI.AI,OCK. He told us how to blow up the Huep I’. Long Bridge. 
Mr. LIEBETXR. Tell us just what he told you ahnut that. I know you can’t 

remember the exact words, hut you can remember the substance of the cnnversa- 
tion. We want you to tell us ahout it. 

Mr. BL.~LOCK. IIe told us to put powder charges at each end of the bridge from 
the foundation to where the foundation meets the suspension part, and to blow 
that part up and the center part of the bridge would collapse. 

Mr. LIEBELEB. Did he talk about any other aspect of guerrilla warfare that 

you ran remember? 
Mr. BLALOCK. He said that if you don’t have the materials gnu need always 

available, you had to do without stuff. 
Mr. LIELSELER. Did he give any specific example of that? 
Mr. BLAI~CK. Gunpowder, high explosives. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Did he tell you how to do without gunpowder in these activities? 
Mr. BULOCK. He told us how to derail a train without gunpowder. 
Mr. LIEBELER. What did he say about that? 
Mr. BL.~LOCK. He said put a rhain around the railroad track and lock it to 

the track with a lock. 
Mr. LIERELER. And then when the train hit the chain it would derail the train? 
Mr. BLAW)CK. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Did he say that he knew how to make gunpowder? 

Mr. BLALOCK. Yes, sir : he told us the formula, and I-saltpeter and nitrate- 
some formula-1 don’t, remember. 

Mr. LIEBEIXR. Did he say anything about guns? 
Mr. BLAI.OCK. About zip guns, how to make them out of tubing and a plunger. 

Mr. LIFJGZLER. Did he say something to the effect that he knew all about guns? 
Mr. BI,AI.OCK. R’o; he told us he had a manual that explained all about guns, 

a Marine manual, and that he had training in guns, trained with guns. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Do you remember anything else that he said? 

Mr. BLALOCK. Xot right offhand. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Did he talk to Bringuier about helping Bringuier in this orga- 

nization, or just what was the general context of this conversation? Was this 
just a general discussion of guerrilla warfare, or did it relate to the activities 
of Bringuier’s anti-Castro organization? What can you remember? 

Mr. BLALOCK. He just asked him ahnut the anti-Castro organization and asked 
him to explain it to him, and he said he was interested in finding out how it 

operated. He didn’t say he wanted to join it : He just said he was interested in 
it. Oh, and Bringuier gave him literature, a Cuban newspaper and leaflets or 
booklets. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Was there any discussion of politics? 

Mr. BLALOCK. Not to my recollection. 
Mr. LIEBELEB. Was there any mention’of President Kennedy? 
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Mr. BLALOCK. Ko, sir. I couldn’t say for sure there was no mention of Presi- 

dent Kennedy. I don’t think there was. 
Mr. LIRZELER. What did you think of Oswald? 
Mr. BLALOCK. He seemed like a very intelligent man to me, well spoken, looked 

well dressed, well groomed. 
Mr. LIEBF,LER. Did you think anything else ahout him. or is that about it? 
Mr. BULOCK. That is the impression that I got right at the moment. 

Mr. LIE‘BELER. Did he say anything about Florida? 
Mr. BLALOCK. Just mentioned the Cuban anti-Castro organization there. 
Mr. LIEBELER. What did he say ahout that? 
Mr. BLALOCK. I don’t remember exactly, but I think he said he had heen there 

and he had looked into it. I couldn’t say for sure on that. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Did he mention the name of the organization? 
Mr. BLALOCK. So, sir. No, I don’t recall any name. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Do you rememher being interviewed about this subject hy an 

FBI agent? 
Mr. BLALOCK. Yes, sir: I do, during the Christmas holidays. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Do you remember his name? 
Mr. BLALXK. No, sir; I don’t. All I know is a Lieutenant or something like 

that. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Do you think you would remember his name if I mentioned it 

to you? 
Mr. BLAIXXK. I might, or my mother might. She was present. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Your mother was present when you were interviewed by the 

FBI? 
Mr. BLALOCK. Yes. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Would it refresh your recollection if I told you that the report 

that I have of the intertiew that you had with the FBI agent indicates that 
the man’s name w<as Kevin J. Herrigan? 

Mr. BLAL~EK. Herrigan? No. No; I don’t remember that name. 

Mr. LIEBELFX. Do you remember talking to the FBI agent about Oswald’s 
remark concerning having been to Florida? 

Mr. BLALOCK. No, sir; I don’t remember what I told the FBI agent. I don’t 
remember anything about Oswald saying-nly that I think he said he had 

been there. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Well, the report that I have here says that you seemed to re 

member Oswald mentioning something about ha\+ing recently visited some- 
thing called the Casa Nostra, C-a-s-a N-o-s-t-r-a. Do you remember saying 

anything about that to the FBI man? 
Mr. BLALOCK. Yes, sir; I remember mentioning the organization, but I 

couldn’t remember the name. That organization was mentioned in the con- 
versation with Carlos Bringuier and Harvey Oswald. 

Mr. L~zB-. It was? 
Mr. BLAUJCIC. I believe so. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Do you remember that it was Oswald who mentioned it? 
Mr. BLALOCK. I don’t remember which one mentioned it first. 
Mr. LIEBELER. And it was mentioned as being a Cuban organization in 

Florida? Is that your recollection? 
Mr. BLAIXXK. Yes, sir; I think that is the name they mentioned. It could 

be something similar. I know I got this Mafia name mixed up with a Cuban 
organization name. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Well, you know that that name that I just mentioned, Casa 
Nostra, is very similar to the Cosa Nostra. Do you think you may have been 
confused at the time you talked with him? 

Mr. BLALOCK. Well, I meant the Cuban organization. I may have said the 
M&a, the Cm Nostra. 

Mr. LIERELER. You may have used that name? 
Mr. BLANK. But I meant the Cuban- 
Mr. LIEBELER. You meant some Anti-Castro Cuban.organization? 

Mr. BLALOCK. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LJEBELER. So the best you can recall, Oswald didn’t say that he had 

recently visited someone in the Cosa Nostra? 
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Mr. BLALOCK. So, sir. Yes. sir. 
Jlr. LIEBELER. But you do recall sort of vaguely that Oswald did say that 

he had been in Florida and he had visited an Anti-Castro Cuban organization 
there? 

Xr. RLALOCK. Yes, sir; I do. 
1Ir. LIEBELER. Can you remember anything else about this incident in the 

store that day when Oswald came in? 
Mr. BT.~L~~K. Oh, he said he lived on Magazine Street. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Did he give his exact address to you? Do you remember? 
Mr. BI,.ILOCK. T don’t believe he gave his exact address, but I couldn’t say 

for sure. 
Mr. LIF,BET.ER. Did he say anything ahout whether he was working or not, 

whether he had a job? 
Mr. BI.ALOCK. I don’t remember if he said anything about his job. 
Jir. LIEBELER. Did he tell you anything about his background? Did he say 

he was from New Orleans or anything about that? 
3Ir. BLALOCK. So. sir; I don’t remember anything about that. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Can you think of anything else that happened? 
JIr. RLALOCK. Philip Geraci and I started following him home after we 

both left the store. Oswald. Philip and I both left the store about the same 
time. We started to follow Oswald to his house just out of curiosity, and I 
recollect that Oswald said he would give us his Marine manual if we ever 
came back, if we contacted him. 

Mr. LIEBELER. That he would give you the Marine manual if you saw each 
other at the store again? 

JIr. BLAI.OCK. At the store or just saw each other, if we would contact him 
and get it, we could have it. If he saw us again, he would give it to us. 

Mr. LIEXELER. How long did you continue to follow him home? Did you 
just walk out and walk down the street with him, or did you sort of shadow 
him or- 

Mr. BL~L~CK. So, sir. We walked out the door. We both started different 
directions, and Philip and I said, “Why don’t we follow him and get the Marine 
manual now, nothing else to do.” We started to go to the corner, and we didn’t 
see him, so we went on our way. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Did you erer see the Marine manual? 
Mr. BLALOCK. So, sir; I didn’t. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Did you ever talk to Mr. Bringuier again after that? 
Mr. BLALOCK. No, sir. 
Mr. LIEBELER. You never saw Carlos again until just today- 
Mr. BLALOCK. No, sir. 
Mr. LIEBELER. When you saw him come out of this room and leave the building? 
Mr. BLALOCX. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Are you and Philip good friends? 
Mr. BLALOCK. I wouldn’t say real close friends, but we are friends. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Did you talk about this incident or talk about Oswald at all 

after this time but prior to the assassination? 
Mr. BULOCK. No, sir; I don’t believe we did. We talked about the Cuban 

Student Organization. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Were you aware of the fact that Oswald was subsequently 

arrested here in New Orleans in connection with his activity on behalf of the 
Fair Play for Cuba Committee? 

Mr. BLALOCK. No; I didn’t know about that until after the assassination. 
Mr. LIEBELER. YOU didn’t hear Oswald debate Carlos on the radio program- 
Mr. BLALOCK. No, sir. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Or you didn’t see Oswald on television? 
Mr. BLALOCK. No, sir. I might have. I just don’t remember it. 
Mr. LIEBEI~EB. Did Philip say anything about having seen these things? 
Mr. BLALOCK. Sot to me he didn’t. 
Mr. IX%nxER. SO YOU never had any real discussions, as far as you remember, 

with Philip about Oswald until the time of the assassination? Is that correct? 
Mr. BLALOCK. That is correct. 
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Mr. LIEBELER. You must have talked to Philip about Oswald after the 
assassination. 

Mr. BLALOCK. Yes. 
Mr. LI~XELER. Did you recall to each other and discuss with each other the 

meeting that you had with Oswald in the store on Decatur S.treet at that time? 
Mr. BL~LOCK. I think I was the one that recognized him. I called it to 

Philip’s attention, and the next day at school he said, “Yes, that is the man 
we met at the store.” I recognized Oswald late one night when I was just 
about going to bed. I told my Daddy, “I went uptown and met that man up 
there.” 

Mr. LIEBELER. This was shortly after the assassination? 
Mr. BLALOCK. Yes; during the time they didn’t have any shows but the 

funeral and- 
Mr. LIEBELFX. [Exhibiting photograph to witness.] Let me show you a pic- 

ture that has been marked as Exhibit 1 to the affidavit of Jesse J. Garner 
taken at New Orleans, April 6, 1964. and I ask you if you recognize the 
individual portrayed in that picture. 

Mr. BLALOCK. Yes, sir ; I recognize him. 
Mr. LIEBELER. And do you recognize him as the man you met in the store 

that day? 
Mr. BLALOCK. Yes, sir ; Lee Harvey Oswald. 
Mr. LIEEXLER. Can you think of anything else now about your contact with 

Oswald, or can you think of anything else that you know about him that I 
haven’t asked you about and you think the Commission should know about? 

Mr. BLALOCK. I can’t think of anything else. 
Mr. LIEBELER. I don’t have any other questions. If  you can’t think of 

anything else, we will terminate the deposition. On behalf of the Commission, 
I want to thank you very much. 

TESTIMONY OF VINCENT T. LEE 

The testimony of Vincent T. Lee was taken at 1:30 p.m., on April 17, 1964, at 
the U.S. courthouse, Foley Square, New York, N.Y., by Messrs. J. Lee Rankin, 
General Counsel, and Wesley J. Liebeler, assistant counsel of the President’s 
Commission. Vincent T. Lee was accompanied by his attorney, Stanley Faulkner. 

Vincent T. Lee, having duly affirmed, was examined and testified as follows: 
Mr. RANKIN. Mr. Lee, this deposition is being taken by the Commission under 

the authority of Executive Order No. 11130 and joint resolution of the Congress 
No. 137. My name is J. Lee Rankin. I am general counsel for the Commission. 
Mr. Liebeler is associated with me in this work. You have a right to have a 
copy of your testimony if you wish to pay for it and you may ask the reporters to 
make such arrangements. 

During the examination you have a right to have counsel, which you have 
here, and counsel may object to any of the questions. At the close of the exami- 
nation by myself, if counsel wishes to ask you questions to clarify or make clear 
any particular part of your testimony or correct it, if you wish to call anything 
to his attention, why, he is free to do that. 

Where do you live, Mr. Lee? 
Mr. LEE. 37% St. Mark’s Place, New York City. 
Mr. RANKIN. You are entitled under the rules of the Commission to 3 days’ 

notice, and I assume since you are here you are willing to waive that and go 
ahead with the deposition. 

Mr. LEE. Yes. 
Mr. RANKIN. Do you have an official connection with the Fair Play for 

Cuba Committee? 
Mr. LEE. The Fair Play for Cuba Committee is no longer a functioning 

organization. 
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